
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
 
Tuesday, March 25, 2014                                                                           City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Human Services Commission applicants beginning at 5:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• International Student Exchange Day Proclamation (Kentlake and Kentwood High Schools) 
 
RECEPTION TO WELCOME EXCHANGE STUDENTS AND TEACHERS 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  February 11, 2014 Regular Meeting and February 25, 2014 Special Study 

Session  (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Consider Amendment to Contract for Covington Community Park Maintenance (Vondran) 
C-4. Resolution Authorizing LWCF Grant Application for Covington Community Park 

Construction (Feser) 
C-5. Resolution Authorizing WWRP Grant Application for Covington Community Park 

Construction (Feser) 
C-6. Resolution Authorizing WWRP Grant Application for South Covington Park Acquisition 

(Feser) 
  
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Vice-Chair Leslie Hamada:  March 13 meeting. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  March 13 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  March 19 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Sean Smith:  March 6 meeting; March 20 meeting canceled. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  February 27 meeting. 

 
 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointments to Human Services Commission (Council) 
2. Discuss Covington Community Park Phase II 50% Design Alternatives (Feser) 
3. Present and Discuss Parks CIP/CFP (Feser) 
4. Presentation of 2013 Year End Financials (Hendrickson) 
5. Discuss Council’s Commissioner Interview Procedures (Matheson) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 
 
 
 



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  March 25, 2014   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  FEBRUARY 11, 2014 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 

MEETING MINUTES AND FEBRUARY 25, 2014 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL 
STUDY SESSION MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the February 11, 2014 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes and the February 25, 2014 City Council Special 
Study Session Minutes. 

 
 
 

 

1 of 59



Unapproved Draft – February 11, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 25, 2014 
 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, February 11, 2014 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
February 11, 2014, at 7:05 p.m., with Mayor Margaret Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Wayne Snoey. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Jeff Wagner. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
excuse Mayor Pro Tem Wagner who had a sick family member.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion 
carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Richard 
Hart, Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; 
Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Salina Lyons, Principal 
Planner; Ann Mueller, Senior Planner; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Planning Commissioner Bill Judd was honored as the 2013 Commissioner of the Year. 
• Austin Anderson of Kentlake Leadership accepted the National Teen Dating Violence 

Awareness and Prevention Month Proclamation. 
 
The Council recessed at 7:15 p.m. for a reception honoring the 2013 Commissioner of the Year 
and reconvened at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 

2 of 59



Unapproved Draft – February 11, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 25, 2014 
 
David Aldous, Parks & Recreation Commissioner, thanked Council for support of parks and 
recreation in Covington. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  January 14, 2014 City Council Special & Regular Meeting Minutes; January 28, 

2014 City Council Special Joint Study Session with Planning Commission Minutes; and 
January 28, 2014 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
C-2. Vouchers: Vouchers #30597-30664, Including Vendor ACH Payments, in the Amount of 

$333,212.98, Dated January 21 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002015111-
1002015119 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $150,755.10, 
Dated January 31, 2014. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-01  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A USED 2013 HITACHI 
ZX60 MINI-EXCAVATOR FROM PAPE MACHINERY. 

 
C-3.  Approve Purchase of Mini Excavator.  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON 
APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE COVINGTON TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT DISTRICT 
AND THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON. 

 
C-4. Approve Interlocal Agreement Between City of Covington and Covington Transportation 

Benefit District. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Accept Department of Commerce Grant for Covington Community Park.  
 
Parks & Recreation Director Scott Thomas gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Thomas provided responses. 
 

3 of 59



Unapproved Draft – February 11, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 25, 2014 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
authorize the City Manager to sign the grant contract for construction of Covington 
Community Park Phase 2.  Vote:  5-1 (Voting yes:  Cimaomo, Harto, Mhoon, Scott, and 
Snoey; voting no:  Lanza).  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Discuss and Consider Approval of Hawk Property Subarea Plan and Planned Action 
Ordinances. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hart and Principal Planner 
Salina Lyons provided responses. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 01-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
ADOPTING THE HAWK PROPERTY SUBAREA PLAN; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILTY AND ESTABLISHING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to pass 
Ordinance No. 01-14 to approve the Hawk Property Subarea Plan.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion 
carried. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 02-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
ADOPTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE 
LAND USE MAP AMENDMENDMENTS PERTAINIG TO 
THE HAWK PROPERTY SUBAREA; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILTY AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
pass Ordinance No. 02-14 to adopt certain Comprehensive Plan Amendments supporting 
the implementation of the Hawk Property Subarea Plan.  Vote:  6-0 (Abstaining:  Lanza).  
Motion carried. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 03-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
ADOPTING NEW PROVISIONS TO CHAPTER 18 OF THE 
COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO THE 

4 of 59



Unapproved Draft – February 11, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 25, 2014 
 

HAWK PROPERTY SUBAREA; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILTY AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
pass Ordinance No. 03-14 adopting amendments to the city’s development regulations 
supporting future development of the Hawk Property Subarea.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion 
carried. 

 
ORDINANCE NO 04-14 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, ESTABLISHING A PLANNED ACTION 
FOR THE HAWK PROPERTY PURSUANT TO THE STATE 
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
pass Ordinance No. 04-14 adopting the Hawk Property Subarea Planned Action 
Ordinance.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Councilmember Mhoon requested clarification regarding the Council’s position on the King 
County Transportation Benefit District issue to bring to her Public Issues Committee meeting; 
and Council reaffirmed that the Council’s position would remain neutral. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Brian Ross, CEO of Oak Pointe Holdings, thanked the Council, staff, and consultants for 
vision on Hawk Property item and praised them for being a city where they want to do business. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:28 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

5 of 59



Unapproved Draft – February 25, 2014 Special Study Session Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 25, 2014 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Study Session Minutes 

Tuesday, February 25, 2014 
 
The Special Study Session was called to order in the City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st 
Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, February 25, 2014, at 6:04 p.m., with Mayor 
Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance 
Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Scott 
Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Salina Lyons, Principal Planner; 
Nelson Ogren, Development Review Engineer; Robert Lindskov, City Engineer; and Sharon Scott, City 
Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Report from Town Center Development Partner. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave an overview of this item and then introduced Bart 
Brynestad, Partner & Senior Vice President with Panattoni Development.  Panattoni and the 
partnership team consisting of Helix Design Group, Adolfson & Peterson Construction, and 
Pardini Design Group then proceeded with a brief presentation on their qualifications, why they 
are interested, and what they hope to accomplish in Covington Town Center. 
 
Council provided comments, asked questions, and expressed admiration for Panattoni’s projects. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to authorize staff to partner with Panattoni 
Development Company to explore development opportunities in the Town Center and 
direct staff to provide updates and seek direction from the council at key intervals. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
 

6 of 59



Unapproved Draft – February 25, 2014 Special Study Session Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 25, 2014 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

7 of 59



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  March 25, 2014 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #30781-30826, Including Vendor ACH Payments in the 
Amount of $127,843.96, Dated March 4, 2014; Vouchers #30827-30827 in the Amount of 
$57.05, Dated March 13, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002169557-1002169562 
Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $159,827.92, Dated March 14, 
2014. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #30781-30826, Including 
Vendor ACH Payments in the Amount of $127,843.96, Dated March 4, 
2014; Vouchers #30827-30827 in the Amount of $57.05, Dated March 13, 
2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002169557-1002169562 Inclusive, 
Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $159,827.92, Dated 
March 14, 2014. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

8 of 59



9 of 59



10 of 59



11 of 59



12 of 59



13 of 59



14 of 59



15 of 59



16 of 59



17 of 59



18 of 59



19 of 59



20 of 59



 

 

 Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  March 25, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:   AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT #1 TO 

THE AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH CANBER CORPS FOR 
MAINTENANCE AT COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
1. Amendment #1 to Agreement for Services with Canber Corps 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ross Junkin, Maintenance Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION:  
On April 9, 2013 the City Council awarded the Covington Community Park Maintenance 
Agreement to the lowest, most qualified bidder, Canber Corps, to provide maintenance services 
for the landscaping and grounds at Covington Community Park as outlined in the agreement.  
 
The process that resulted in the selection of Canber Corps included requesting bids from all 
landscape maintenance contractors on the Municipal Research and Services (MRSC) Small 
Works Roster. Twenty-three (23) companies requested bid specifications and plans.  We 
received bids from six (6) companies. The lowest bid was from Canber Corps. 
   
Canber Corp has done an acceptable job maintaining the landscaping and grounds at Covington 
Community Park for the past year including opening and closing the gates for the park at the 
beginning and end of each day.  Therefore, Staff recommends extending the term of this 
agreement for another twelve months. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not to extend the agreement and advertise the project for competitive bids.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The contract is $58,139.01 including sales tax (same as last year).  The contract has provisions 
that allow discretionary work (extra costs) that will be approved by the city prior to any work 
being started. These funds are included in the 2014 Parks Maintenance budget. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:              Ordinance            Resolutions       X     Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment #1 to the 
Agreement for Services with Canber Corps for maintenance at Covington 
Community Park. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

21 of 59



 Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

 
Amendment #1 

 
Between the City of Covington and Canber Corps 

 
 

That portion of Contract No. 1179-13 between the City of Covington and Canber Corps 
is amended as follows: 
 

1. Term of Agreement.  Section 3 of the Agreement shall be amended to 
extend the term of the Agreement until April 30, 2015. 

2. Compensation.   Section 4.1 of the Agreement shall be amended to 
increase the amount not to exceed to $208,000. 

 
All other provisions of the contract shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Dated this 25th day of March, 2014. 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year written 
above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Derek Matheson 
Its: City Manager 
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
CANBER CORPS 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
By:  
Its:  

ATTACHMENT 1

22 of 59



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 25, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  ADOPT RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

COMPLETE AN APPLICATON FOR FUNDING ASSISTANCE FROM LAND 
AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND (LWCF) FOR THE COVINGTON 
COMMUNITY PARK PHASE 2 CONSTRUCTION PROJECT.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Land and Water Conservation Fund Authorization Resolution 
 
PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner 
 
EXPLANATION:   
Covington Community Park Phase 1 was completed in June of 2013.  Currently, Phase 2 design 
is in progress, with construction scheduled in 2015. Although cost estimates are being refined 
during the existing design work, there is still a known shortfall of construction funding.  Staff 
recommends the council to pass the attached resolution authorizing the city manager to apply for 
a grant from the Land and Water Conservation Fund for the Covington Community Park Phase 2 
Construction project.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Not adopt the resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
There is no net cost. Grant funds will off-set the financial impact of the city’s portion of the 
project. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance     X  Resolution            Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt a resolution authorizing the city manager to apply for 
LWCF grant funding for the Covington Community Park Phase 2 
Construction project. 
 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney and Finance Director 
 

23 of 59



Local Agency 
Land and Water Conservation Fund 

Authorizing Resolution 
Development Type Projects 

 
 

Organization Name           City of Covington Resolution No.        14-06 
 

Project Name(s)        Covington Community Park Phase 2   
 

This is a resolution that authorizes submitting application(s) for grant funding assistance for Land and Water Conservation 
Fund project(s) to the Recreation and Conservation Office as provided in Title 16, USC, Chapter 4601-4 as amended; WAC 
286 and subsequent Legislative action. 

 
WHEREAS, our organization has approved a comprehensive parks and recreation plan that includes this project; and 

 
WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) program, state grant assistance is requested to 
aid in financing the cost of facility development; and 

 
WHEREAS, our organization considers it in the best public interest to complete the project described in the application(s); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 

1. The city manager is authorized to make formal application to the Recreation and Conservation Office for grant assistance; 
 

2. Any grant assistance received will be used for direct costs associated with implementation of the project referenced above; 
 

3. Our organization hereby certifies that our matching share of project funding will be derived from City Parks Capital 
Improvement Program and that we are responsible for supporting all non-cash commitments to this project should they not 
materialize. 

 
4. We acknowledge that the grant assistance, if approved, will be paid on a reimbursement basis, meaning we will only request 

payment from the Recreation and Conservation Office after eligible and allowable costs have been incurred and payment remitted 
to our vendors, and that the Recreation and Conservation Office will hold retainage until the project is deemed complete. 

 
5. We acknowledge that any facility developed through grant assistance from the Recreation and Conservation Funding Board must 

be reasonably maintained and made available to the general public at reasonable hours and times of the year according to the 
type of area or facility unless other restrictions have been agreed to by the Recreation and Conservation Office Director or the 
Recreation and Conservation Funding Board and the National Park Service. 

 
6. We acknowledge that any facility developed with grant assistance from the Recreation and Conservation Funding Board must be 

dedicated for public outdoor recreation purposes, and be retained and maintained for such use for perpetuity unless otherwise 
provided and agreed to by our organization and the Recreation and Conservation Funding Board and the National Park Service. 

 
7. We have read both the federal guidelines and state policies for the LWCF program and agree to abide by those guidelines and 

policies, and as LWCF grants are federal funds, our organization must comply with all applicable federal laws. 
 

8. This resolution becomes part of a formal application to the Recreation and Conservation Office for grant assistance; and 
 

9. We provided appropriate opportunity for public comment on this application. 
 

This resolution was adopted by our organization during the meeting held: 
 

Location          Covington, Washington Date          March 25, 2014  
 
 

Signed and approved by the following authorized representative: 
 

Signed                                                                                                                                                                    

Title                                                                        Date               March 25, 2014                                                                   

Attest:                                                                                                                                                                     

Approved as to form                                                                                                                                                   
 

1/30/12 
 Ref. #2012 LWCF- D 

              ATTACHMENT 1

24 of 59



Consent Agenda Item C-5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 25, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  ADOPT RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

COMPLETE AN APPLICATON FOR FUNDING ASSISTANCE FROM 
WASHINGTON WILDLIFE AND RECREATION PROGRAM (WWRP) FOR 
THE COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK PHASE 2 CONSTRUCTION 
PROJECT.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program Authorization Resolution 
 
PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner 
 
EXPLANATION:   
Covington Community Park Phase 1 was completed in June of 2013.  Currently, Phase 2 design 
is in progress, with construction scheduled in 2015. Although cost estimates are being refined 
during the existing design work, there is still a known shortfall of construction funding.  Staff 
recommends the council to pass the attached resolution authorizing the city manager to apply for 
a grant from the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program for the Covington Community 
Park Phase 2 Construction project.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Not adopt the resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
There is no net cost. Grant funds will off-set the financial impact of the city’s portion of the 
project. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance     X  Resolution            Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt a resolution authorizing the city manager to apply for 
WWRP grant funding for the Covington Community Park Phase 2 
Construction project. 
 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney and Finance Director 
 

25 of 59



Local Agency 
Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program 

Authorizing Resolution 
Development Type Projects 

 

Organization Name       City of Covington Resolution No.  14-07  

Project Name(s) Covington Community Park Phase 2 Construction    
 

This is a resolution that authorizes submitting application(s) for grant funding assistance for Washington Wildlife and Recreation 
Program project(s) to the Recreation and Conservation Office as provided in Chapter 79A.15 RCW, Acquisition of habitat 
conservation and outdoor recreation lands, WAC 286 and subsequent Legislative action. 

 

WHEREAS, our organization has approved a comprehensive parks and recreation plan or habitat conservation plan that 
includes this project; and 

 
WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program (WWRP), state grant assistance is requested 
to aid in financing the cost of facility development; and 

 

WHEREAS, our organization considers it in the best public interest to complete the project described in the application(s); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 

1. The city manager is authorized to make formal application to the Recreation and Conservation Office for grant assistance; 
 

2. Any grant assistance received will be used for direct costs associated with implementation of the project referenced above; 
 

3. Our organization hereby certifies that our matching share of project funding will be derived from Parks Capital Improvement 
Program and that we are responsible for supporting all non-cash commitments to this project should they not materialize. 

 
4. We acknowledge that the grant assistance, if approved, will be paid on a reimbursement basis, meaning we will only request 

payment from the Recreation and Conservation Office after eligible and allowable costs have been incurred and payment remitted 
to our vendors, and that the Recreation and Conservation Office will hold retainage until the project is deemed complete. 

 

5. We acknowledge that any facility developed through grant assistance from the Recreation and Conservation Funding Board must 
be reasonably maintained and made available to the general public at reasonable hours and times of the year according to the 
type of area or facility unless other restrictions have been agreed to by the Recreation and Conservation Office Director or the 
Recreation and Conservation Funding Board. 

 

6. We acknowledge that any facility developed with grant assistance from the Recreation and Conservation Funding Board must be 
dedicated for public outdoor recreation purposes, and be retained and maintained for such use for perpetuity unless otherwise 
provided and agreed to by our organization and the Recreation and Conservation Funding Board. 

 

7. This resolution becomes part of a formal application to the Recreation and Conservation Office for grant assistance; and 
 

8. We provided appropriate opportunity for public comment on this application. 
 

This resolution was adopted by our organization during the meeting held: 
 

Location   Covington, Washington Date      March 25, 2014  
 
 

Signed and approved by the following authorized representative: 

Signed                                                                                                                                                                                    

Title                                                                                       Date              March 25, 2014                                                                            

Attest:                                                                                                                                                                                     

Approved as to form                                                                                                                                                                 
 
 

1/30/12 
 Ref. #2012 WWRP - D 

ATTACHMENT 1

26 of 59



Consent Agenda Item C-6 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 25, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  ADOPT RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

COMPLETE AN APPLICATON FOR FUNDING ASSISTANCE FROM 
WASHINGTON WILDLIFE AND RECREATION PROGRAM (WWRP) FOR 
THE SOUTH COVINGTON PARK ACQUISITION PROJECT.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program Authorization Resolution 
 
PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner 
 
EXPLANATION:   
South Covington (SoCo) Park consists of three parcels between Jenkins Creek and Wax Road 
and is located due east of Town Center.  The city has begun the due diligence process for all 
three parcels and is working with each of the willing land owners.  Grant funding awarded in 
2013 of $200,000 from King County Conservation Futures Trust (CFT) provides partial 
matching money.   
 
Staff recommends the council to pass the attached resolution authorizing the city manager to 
apply for a grant from the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program for the South Covington 
Park Acquisition project.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Not adopt the resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
There is no net cost. Grant funds will off-set the financial impact of the city’s portion of the 
project. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance     X  Resolution            Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt a resolution authorizing the city manager to apply for 
WWRP grant funding for the South Covington Park Acquisition project. 
 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney and Finance Director 
 

27 of 59



Local Agency 
Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program 

Authorizing Resolution 
Projects with Acquisition - Recreation 

 

Organization Name       City of Covington Resolution No.  14-08  

Project Name(s)      South Covington Park    
 
This is a resolution that authorizes submitting application(s) for grant funding assistance for Washington 
Wildlife and Recreation Program project(s) to the Recreation and Conservation Office as provided in 
Chapter 79A.15 RCW, Acquisition of habitat conservation and outdoor recreation lands, WAC 286 and 
subsequent Legislative action. 
 

WHEREAS, our organization has approved a comprehensive parks and recreation or habitat conservation 
plan that includes this project; and 
 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program (WWRP), state 
grant assistance is requested to aid in financing the cost of land acquisition; and 
 

WHEREAS, our organization considers it in the best public interest to complete the project described in 
the application(s); 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 
 

1. The City Manager is authorized to make formal application to the Recreation and Conservation Office 
for grant assistance; 

 

2. Any grant assistance received will be used for direct costs associated with implementation of the 
project referenced above; 

 

3. Our organization hereby certifies that our matching share of project funding will be derived from the 
Parks Capital Improvement Program and that we are responsible for supporting all non-cash 
commitments to this project should theynot materialize. 

 

4. We acknowledge that the grant assistance, if approved, will be paid on a reimbursement basis, 
meaning we will only request payment from the Recreation and Conservation Office after eligible and 
allowable costs have been incurred and payment remitted to our vendors, and that the Recreation and 
Conservation Office will hold retainage until the project is deemed complete. 

 

5. We acknowledge that any property acquired and/or facility developed through grant assistance from 
the Recreation and Conservation Funding Board must be reasonably maintained and made available 
to the general public at reasonable hours and times of the year according to the type of area or facility 
unless other restrictions have been agreed to by the Recreation and Conservation Office Director or 
the Recreation and Conservation Funding Board. 

 

6. We acknowledge that any property acquired and/or facility developed with grant assistance from the 
Recreation and Conservation Funding Board must be dedicated for public outdoor recreation 
purposes, and be retained and maintained for such use for perpetuity unless otherwise provided and 
agreed to by our organization and the Recreation and Conservation Funding Board. 

 

7. We acknowledge that any property acquired using Recreation and Conservation Funding Board 
assistance must be developed within five years of the acquisition closing. 

 

8. This resolution becomes part of a formal application to the Recreation and Conservation Office for 
grant assistance; and 

 

9. We provided appropriate opportunity for public comment on this application. 
 

This resolution was adopted by our organization during the meeting held: 
 
Location  Covington, Washington ______________   Date     March 25, 2014 ________________  
 
Signed and approved by the following authorized representative: 
 

Signed ________________________________________________________________________  
 

Title____________________________________________________  Date     March 25, 2014 __  
 

Attest: ________________________________________________________________________  
 

Approved as to form _____________________________________________________________  

ATTACHMENT 1

28 of 59



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: March 25, 2014 

 

SUBJECT:   APPOINTMENTS TO THE HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION  

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst 

                

ATTACHMENTS:  See Interview Schedules and Applications provided separately. 

 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk  

 

EXPLANATION:   

Human Services Commission – Seven Members (Two of which must be Youth): 

 Five positions open (three adults; two youth). 

 One adult position is a replacement position for a partial term. 

 Two of the three adult positions can be outside; both youth positions can be inside or 

outside. 

 

 Name of Applicant (Adults)                      Resides or Works  

Brian Lord (interviewed March 11; interested in Planning also)      Resides Inside Covington  

Leslie Hamada (interviewed March 11; currently in Pos. 2)     Resides Outside Covington* 

Joseph Cimaomo, Sr. (interviewed March 11; 

 interested in Planning also)     Resides Outside Covington* 

Fran McGregor (interviewed March 11; currently in Pos. 1)     Resides Inside Covington 

Nancy Larson (interviewed March 25)     Resides Inside Covington 

  

      Name of Applicant (Youth)          Resides or Works  
Lexi Ford (youth; interviewed March 11)     Resides Inside Covington 

Jared McMeen (youth; interviewed March 25)     Resides Outside Covington* 

Connor Martin (youth; interviewed March 25)     Resides Inside Covington 

Nia Dhillon (youth; interviewed March 25)     Resides Inside Covington 

Adam Wheeler (youth; interviewed March 25)     Resides Outside Covington* 

Austin Anderson (youth; interviewed March 25)     Resides Outside Covington* 

 

*within three-mile radius of Covington city limits 

 

NOTE: Ordinance Nos. 10-13, 04-05 § 1, and 22-02 § 1) Membership, terms, residence 

requirement:  “Three members shall be adults residing or working within the City of Covington, 

two shall be adults residing inside or outside of the City of Covington but within a three-mile 

radius of the City limits and two shall be youth members between the ages of 14 and 18 years at 

the start of their terms residing in or within a three-mile radius of the City of Covington. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 

considered for the open positions. 

29 of 59



 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motions            Other  

 

Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 

seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill adult open Position No. 1 on the 

Human Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2017. 

 

Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 

seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill adult open Position No. 2 on the 

Human Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2017. 

 

Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 

seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill adult replacement Position No. 7 

on the Human Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2016. 

 

Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 

seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill youth open Position No. 4 on the 

Human Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2015. 

 

Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 

seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill youth open Position No. 5 on the 

Human Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2015. 

 

REVIEWED BY: Derek Matheson, City Manager  

 Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 

 Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager 

 Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst 

 

30 of 59



 

Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: March 25, 2014 

 

SUBJECT: CONSULTANT PRESENTATION OF 50% DESIGN ALTERNATIVES FOR 

COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK PHASES 2 AND 3.    

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. 50% Design Site Plan 

 

PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner 

 

EXPLANATION: 

Covington Community Park Phase 1 was completed in June 2013 and included a multi-purpose 

grass field, 1.5 miles of trail through forest and meadows, portable restrooms, parking lot, 

bleachers, restored wetlands and natural areas.  In December 2013, the city council approved a 

contract with MacLeod Reckord Landscape Architects to prepare a 60% design plan for 

completing the park.  The consultant team will present two design alternatives at the 50% design 

level showing options for dividing park features between phases two and three.  Staff seeks 

direction regarding which park elements council wishes to include in phase two.  

 

Alternative #1 includes the elements specified in the legislative appropriation - parking, a 

community event stage with grass meadow seating area, large and small group picnic shelters, a 

tennis court, outdoor exercise equipment, expanded trail system, temporary restrooms, additional 

wetland restoration and necessary infrastructure.  

 

Alternative #2 includes all of the above, plus a universal access playground for 5-12 year olds, 

outdoor classroom picnic shelter, second tennis court and/or multipurpose court, disc golf course 

and additional parking.  

 

The consultants will use feedback from the council, Parks and Recreation Commission and two 

public open houses to refine and further develop the program to the 60% design level.  The park 

plan and cost estimate will be provided to the city council in June to consider for adoption.  The 

60% design and cost estimate will then be the basis for grant applications to the Washington 

State Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO) this summer. 

 

ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Do nothing.  

2. Return the issue to city staff for further study and analysis. 

 

31 of 59



FISCAL IMPACT:  

Covington Community Park Phase 2 currently has funding of $2.1 million from a legislative 

appropriation/Commerce grant awarded in 2013.  If successful, application to the 2014 RCO 

grant program could produce additional funding of $500,000 available next year.  

 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance            Resolution          Motion        X    Other 

 

PROVIDE INPUT TO STAFF 

 

REVIEWED BY:  Parks & Recreation Director, City Manager, Finance Director 

 

32 of 59



4
8
0

495

494

c
c

c
c

1
8
0
t h

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 S
E

SE 240th STREET

1
8
0
t h

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 S
E

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

CLIENT AGENCY:

SHEET

DATEREVISIONS:

60% SET

COVINGTON, WA 98042

16720 SE 271ST STREET

PARKS & RECREATION
CITY OF COVINGTON

COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK

JK

MacLeod
Reckord PLLC
83 Columbia Street, Suite 306

Seattle, Washington 98104

P 206-323-7919

F 206-323-9242

K2.0SITE PLAN

ATTACHMENT 1

33 of 59



Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date:  March 25, 2014 

 

SUBJECT: PRESENTATION OF THE DRAFT PARKS SIX-YEAR (2015 – 2020) CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP)  

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. 6-Year Parks Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Summary  

2. 6-Year Parks CIP Map 

3. 6-Year Parks CIP Project Descriptions 

4. 20-Year Parks Capital Facilities Plan (CFP) Project List 

 

PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner 

 

EXPLANATION:  

In order to develop the park system envisioned by Covington residents in 2009 during the parks, 

recreation and open space planning process, we need a plan of action for parks capital projects.  

Staff is currently updating the 2005 Parks Capital Improvement Program (CIP) to serve this 

purpose.  At this stage of the process staff is seeking guidance from council regarding the 

priorities and timing of future parks capital projects.  

 

Based on review of the city’s Comprehensive Plan Parks and Recreation Element, the Budget 

Priorities Advisory Committee final report and council Summit goals, the top four categories of 

parks capital projects include (1) town center, (2) maintenance of current facilities, (3) additional 

community and neighborhood parks and (4) trail development.  These parameters helped to 

determine how the park projects are grouped and prioritized.  As shown in the 20-year Park 

Capital Facilities Plan (CFP) project list (Attachment 4), the projects are grouped into four 

categories, A-D, with A being the highest and most pressing priority.  Group B includes projects 

that are important and if an opportunity became available, should be acted on.  Group C are long-

term projects that help fulfill the city’s complete park system.  Group D contains bike and shared 

lanes in the street system and reside in the Parks CIP as a placeholder for a future non-motorized 

plan and are relevant to the parks trail system.  

 

Staff is presenting this draft CIP to the council in order to discuss the projects included in the list; 

seek input if projects should be added, removed, or moved forward or back in the annual 

scheduling, and to answer any questions that the council may have.  All of this information is 

beneficial in evaluating and prioritizing projects in the CIP due to the need to balance priorities, 

expenditures, funding allocations and work plan capabilities. 

 

Reviewing the priorities is the first step of the Parks CIP process.  The next step includes council 

review and discussion of CIP including the cost estimates associated with each park project.  

 

34 of 59



ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Do nothing. 

2. Return the issue to city staff for further study and analysis. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The estimated cost of each proposed project will be shown in the next step of the CIP review 

process.  The specific revenue sources for the city portion of the funds for each project is 

determined each year during the budget process.  Additional revenues are needed to fund these 

projects.  Possible sources are a bond, a levy, grants, legislative appropriations and park impact 

fees. 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution            Motion      X   Other 

 

PROVIDE INPUT TO STAFF 

 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, Finance Director, Parks and Recreation Director 

35 of 59



City of Covington 
Parks 20-Year Capital Facitilites Program

DRAFT

Rank CIP #  Project  Detail 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020+

1 2010  Covington Aquatic Center  Renovation  
X X

2 1010  Covington Community Park (CCP)  Phase 2 
X X  

3 1010  Covington Community Park (CCP)  Phase 1 completion (Reforestation, Interpretive Signs - KCD) 
X

4 3001  Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) update  Update of Parks Capital Improvement Plan 
X  

5 2008  Cedar Creek Park  Demolition of two residences and clean-up to fulfill King County grant funding requirement 
X

6 3002  Park Impact Fee (PIF) Study  Park Impact Fee program development  
X

7 1019  South Covington (SoCo) Park  Park east of Wax Road to support and expand Town Center facility  
X X X

8 3002  City Comp Plan Update  Parks and Recreation and Parks CFP Elements Update of City's Comprehensive Plan  
X X

9 2011  Town Center Park Plaza  Park within new Town Center development 
X X X

10 1014  Jenkins Creek Park  Improvements   
X X X

11 1000  City Hall   Design and construction 
X

12 3003
 Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) 

Plan update 
 PROS Plan Update 

X

13 1009  Hawk Park  New planned development 
X X X

14 3003  Covington Elementary Ballfields study  Ballfields at the new Covington Elementary School  
X

15 1017  Pipe Lake Park  Park providing water access (Acquisition) 
X X

16 1101 Pipeline Trail North  Trail north of 272nd (1.5 miles) ties into Tri-City trail 
X X

17 1110  Jenkins Creek Trail (JCT) 
 JCT North (Kent-Kangley to Hawk Trail) and JCT South (Kent-Kangley to SoCo to Covington 

Way) X X

18 1010  Covington Community Park (CCP)  Phase 3 
X  X

19 1178  Community Park #3 
 Acquisition and development of Community Park #3 (possibilities: Covington Pit Park, Camp 

McCollough, Eastern Covington parcels)  X X

20 1013  Gerry Crick Skate Park   Renovation  
X

21 1094  Crystal View Park  Renovation  
X   

22 2002  Friendship Park  Renovation  
X

23 3003  Dog Park  Location and development of an off-leash dog park 
X

24 3004  Community Foresty Plan   Update and adoption of Community Forestry Plan  
X

 SUBTOTAL 

 In-Process 

 Renovations   Prioritization Criteria: 

 Community/Neighborhood Park  1. Maintain existing facilities 

 Trails  2. Addition of coummunity and neightborhood parks 

 Planning  3. Trail development 

 Water 
X Committed project

 Other/Special Facility 
X bold type and "x" denotes Bond consideration 

Q:\Parks and Recreation\275 Planning & Development\2014 CIP\CIP Excel Workbook\CIP - 2014-03-17 for Council 03-25-2014Overall CIP

ATTACHMENT 1

36 of 59



ATTACHMENT 2

37 of 59



City of Covington 
Parks 6-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Project Descriptions

DRAFT

Rank CIP #  Project  Detail  Description 

1 2010  Covington Aquatic Center  Renovation  

2 1010  Covington Community Park (CCP)  Phase 2  Project consists of 60% design for Phase 2 and 3 and 100% for Phase 2. 

3 1010  Covington Community Park (CCP)  Phase 1 completion (Reforestation, Interpretive Signs - KCD) 

 CCP Phase 1 consisted of design and construction of multi-purpose grass field, 

1.5 miles of paved and natural surface trails through forest and meadows, 

portable restrooms, parking lot, bleachers, restored wetlands and natural 

areas.  

4 3001  Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) update  Update of Parks Capital Improvement Plan 

 Update of Parks Capital Improvement Plan; identifying and cost estimating all 

park facility projects for next 20 years. Document used for park planning,  

development of Park Impact Fee program and City's Comp Plan.   

5 2008  Cedar Creek Park 
 Demolition of two residences and clean-up to fulfill King County grant funding 

requirement 
 Residences demolition (one manufactured home, one 2-story stick-built) 

6 3002  Park Impact Fee (PIF) Study  Park Impact Fee program development  
 Development of the City's Park Impact Fee to sustain parks level of service for 

new development.  

7 1019  South Covington (SoCo) Park  Park east of Wax Road to support and expand Town Center facility  

 Acquire, plan, design and construct park across Wax Road from the Town 

Center.  Park features could include holiday lighting tree, play equipment, lawn 

area, trails, picnic tables/shelter, benches, interpretive signs and creek access. 

8 3002  City Comp Plan Update 
 Parks and Recreation and Parks CFP Elements Update of City's 

Comprehensive Plan  

 Parks and Recreation and Parks CFP Elements Update of City's Comprehensive 

Plan  

9 2011  Town Center Park Plaza  Park within new Town Center development 

 Acquire, plan, design and construct Downtown Plaza Park.  Park features could 

include stage, flexible large gathering hardscaped area capable of being 

smaller areas, public art, seating areas, water feature, shade trees and 

plantings. 

10 1014  Jenkins Creek Park  Improvements   

Plan, design and construct park improvements to include replacing damaged 

signs and tables, boardwalk, viewing deck, paved trails, lawn areas and 

meadows; features identified in planning phase including play and other park 

amenities. equipment, picnic shelter and tables 

11 1000  City Hall   Design and construction 
 Develop a conceptual plan and cost estimate for a new City Hall facility 

located in the Town Center.  

12 3003
 Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) 

Plan update 
 PROS Plan Update  Update of the 2010 Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan (PROS) 

13 1009  Hawk Park  New planned development 
 Monitoring and possible partnering of Hawks Subarea neighborhood park 

development. 

14 3003  Covington Elementary Ballfields study  Ballfields at the new Covington Elementary School  
 In-depth study of ballfield need in Covington and surround area for youth and 

adult athletics. (In-house) 

15 1017  Pipe Lake Park  Park providing water access (Acquisition) 
 Acquire, design and construct park improvement to include waterfront access 

to water, dock, picnic tables, benches, restrooms and parking.  

16 1101 Pipeline Trail North  Trail north of 272nd (1.5 miles) ties into Tri-City trail 
 Acquire access and create shared-used paved trail from Hawk Trail south to 

272nd on Williams Gas Line corridor. 

17 1110  Jenkins Creek Trail (JCT) 
 JCT North (Kent-Kangley to Hawk Trail) and JCT South (Kent-

Kangley to SoCo to Covington Way) 

Plan, design and construct park improvements to include replacing damaged 

signs and tables, boardwalk, viewing deck, paved trails, lawn areas and 

meadows; features identified in planning phase including play and other park 
18 1010  Covington Community Park (CCP)  Phase 3 

 Complete phase 3 of CCP to include lighted artifical turf ball and sport fields, 

play equipment, public art, plaza, basketball court, sand volleyball court, ping 

19 1178  Community Park #3 
 Acquisition and development of Community Park #3 (possibilities: 

Covington Pit Park, Camp McCollough, Eastern Covington parcels)  

 Acquire, plan, design and construct a community park to include lighted ball 

fields and sports courts, play equipment, group picnic shelters, public art, trails, 

interpretive signs, restroom/storage/concession building(s) and parking.   

20 1013  Gerry Crick Skate Park   Renovation   Replacement of ramps and features, demolition of camera/light pole.  

21 1094  Crystal View Park  Renovation  
 Plan, design and construct park improvements to include upgrade irrigation 

system, expand area for and upgrade play equipment, provide ADA access to 

22 2002  Friendship Park  Renovation  
 Plan, design and construct park improvements to include install irrigation 

system, upgrade play equipment and park furnishings.  

23 3003  Dog Park  Location and development of an off-leash dog park 
 Acquire, plan, design and construct an off-leash dog park with parking, fencing 

and trash receptacles.    

24 3004  Community Foresty Plan   Update and adoption of Community Forestry Plan  
 Update and adoption of existing Community Foresty Plan for improved urban 

forestry management.  

Q:\Parks and Recreation\275 Planning & Development\2014 CIP\CIP Excel Workbook\CIP - 2014-03-17 CIP descriptionsOverall CIP

ATTACHMENT 3

38 of 59



City of Covington 
Parks 20-Year Capital Facitilites Program

DRAFT

Rank CIP #  Project  Detail 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020+

1001  SR 516 West City Gateway  City Gateway sign/landscape 
X

1008  Cedar Valley Elementary  Programming of vacated elementary school 
X

1011  Suncrest Park  HOA and Water District (Neighborhood Park NH-3) 
X

1015  Monument park signs  Park Name Signs, replacement of existing signs and new signs 
X

1016  Park directional street signs  Way-Finding signs for existing parks  
 X

1117  Covington Pit Park  South of RR, north of 280th, west of 180th, Outside city limits, owned by King County DOT 

1093  Evergreen Park  Improvements - play equipment, signage, trail 
X

1111  Little Soos Creek Trail North   Connecting Tahoma High School to BPA Trail 
X

1112  North City/PSE Trail (Tri-City Trail)  (Seg 1 of 4 Highland Trail) from Soos Creek Trail to 180th. 
X

1112  180th - Hawk Trail (Tri-City Trail)  (Seg 2 of 4 Highland Trail) 180th to Hawk Trail, outside city limits 
X

1112
 Hawk Trail (formerly known as Timberline 

Trail) (Tri-City Trail) 
 (Seg 3 of 4 Highland Trail) Connects 256th to Cedar Downs Trail  

X

1112  Cedar Creek Park Trail (Tri-City Trail)  (Seg 4 of 4 Highland Trail) Connecting Cedar Downs, Cedar Creek to Maple Valley Library/Roundabout 
X

2027  BPA Trail (Tri-City Trail)  Along northeast BPA corridor to Tahoma High School 
X

2030 Jenkins Creek Trail Connector  Along greenspace between 266th and 268th, connecting Cedar Valley and Jenkins Creek Elementary 
X

2033  Timberlane Way SE Trail   Widening of existing sidewalk 
X

3005  Non-Motorized Plan  Development and adoption of City's Non-Motorized Plan 
X

3006
 Community/Recreation/Acquatic Center 

Study 
 Needs study for community/recreation/aquatic center 

X

 SUBTOTAL 

G
R

O
U

P
 B

 (
n

o
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
z
e

d
)

Q:\Parks and Recreation\275 Planning & Development\2014 CIP\CIP Excel Workbook\CIP - 2014-03-17 for Council 03-25-2014Overall CIP

ATTACHMENT 4

39 of 59



City of Covington 
Parks 20-Year Capital Facitilites Program

DRAFT

Rank CIP #  Project  Detail 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020+

1007  Jenkins Creek Elementary Park  10 acres east of Jenkins Creek Elementary, owned by DOT 
X

1013  Skate Park Expansion  Addition of 14 acres 
X

1094  Crystal View Expansion  Addition of 9.8 acres to the east 
X

1102  Highpoint Trail North  Northern end of Highpoint trail to 256th 
X

1102  Highpoint Trail South  Southern end of Highpoint trail to Little Soos Creek trail 
X

1105  Soos Creek Trail Park  Soos Creek Trail Park expansion 
X

1111  Little Soos Creek Trail South  Connection BPA, Highpoint and Soos Creek trails 
X

1171  Fire Station Park  Renovation to park facility after maintenance facility relocates 
X

1173  Park Maintenance Facility  New, larger facility for park maintenance services 
X

2003  Neighborhood Park NH-1  North of 256th/East of 164th (North West Covington) 
X

2004  Neighborhood Park NH-2  South of SR18/West of 180th (Central Covington) 
X

2005  Neighborhood Park NH-3  East of 164th/North of SR18/West of 171st (West Central Covington) 
X

2006  Neighborhood Park NH-4 East of 173th/North of SR18/West of 180th (North Central Covington)
X

2007  Neighborhood Park NH-5  East of 199th (East Covington) 
X

2009  Natural Area NA-1  South of Jenkins Creek Park 
X

2029  Soos Creek Trail Connect  Along 260th St connecting Soos Creek Trail to new school site/156th 
X

2032  194th Ave Trail Widening  Widening of existing sidewalk  
X

2034  Neighborhood Park NH-6  East of Jenkins Creek Elementary (South East Covington) 
X

1002  SR 516 East City Gateway  Design of City Gateway sign/landscape 
X

1003  SE 256th West Gateway  Design of City Gateway sign/landscape 
X

1004  SE 256th East Gateway  Design of City Gateway sign/landscape 
X

1005  Covington Way South Gateway  Design of City Gateway sign/landscape 
X

1020  Little Soos Creek Park  NE corner of 180th/Hwy 18 (King Co) 
X

1101 Pipeline Trail South  Pipeline Trail south to Winterwood Development 
X

1103  267th Place to 204th Trail  Connects Pipeline Trail to Camp McCullough (east-west) 
X

1116  Calhoun Pit Park  NE corner of 272nd/160th 
X

 SUBTOTAL 

G
R

O
U

P
 C

 (
n

o
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
z
e

d
)

Q:\Parks and Recreation\275 Planning & Development\2014 CIP\CIP Excel Workbook\CIP - 2014-03-17 for Council 03-25-2014Overall CIP40 of 59



City of Covington 
Parks 20-Year Capital Facitilites Program

DRAFT

Rank CIP #  Project  Detail 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020+

1097  SE 261st St Bike Lane  Connects 180th and SR 18 to Little Soos Creek Trail 

2012  256th Street Bike Lane A  256th between Soos Creek and 156th 

2012  256th Street Bike Lane B  256th between 167th and 176th  

2013  180th Ave Bike Lane  180th between 256th and 240th 

2014  240th Street Bike Lane  Soos Creek Trail and Wax Road 

2015  Wax Road Bike Lane A  Wax Road between 240th Street and 180th Ave 

2015  Wax Road Bike Lane B  Wax Road between 272nd Street and Covington Way 

2016  156th Ave Bike Lane  156th  between 260th Ave and North City Trail 

2017  173rd - 176th Aves to 264th Bike Lanes  Between BPA trail and SR 18 along 173rd Ave, 176th Ave and 264th Street with SR overcrossing 

2018  Downtown Bike Lanes  Between SR 18 overcrossing and Wax Road along 171st Ave, 171st/275th St, 270th Pl, 276th St 

2019  252nd Street Bike Lane  252nd Street between Little Soos Creek Trail North and BPA Trail 

2020
 184th Pl, 247th Pl, 246th Pl, 188th Ave 

Shared Roadway  

 Roadway markings between Little Soos Creek Trail North and Jenkins Creek Trail North along 184th Pl, 

247th Pl, 246th Pl, 188th Ave 

2021  260th Ave Shared Roadway  Roadway markings between Soos Creek Connector Trail and Highpoint Trail North 

2022  168th Ave Shared Roadway  Roadway markings between Coho Creek Trail and Kentwood High School 

2023  264th Street to 171st Ave Shared Roadway 
 Roadway markings between Little Soos Creek Trail South and southern SR 18 bike/pedestrian overcrossing 

along 264th St to 171st Ave 

2024  267th Pl and 268th St Shared Roadways 
 Roadway markings between the western entrance of Jenkins Creek Park and 180th Ave and between the 

eastern entrance of Jenkins Creek Park and 268th St 

2025  262nd Pl Shared Roadway  Roadway markings between 180th Ave and Timberlane Way 

2026  184th Ave and 264th Pl Shared Roadways  Roadway markings between 262nd Pl and the northern entrance of Jenkins Creek Park 

2028  272nd Ave Downtown Connection   18th Ave - 169th Ave and 174th Ave - Wax Rd (.23 miles) 

B
I
K

E
 L

A
N

E
S

 (
n

o
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
z
e

d
)

Q:\Parks and Recreation\275 Planning & Development\2014 CIP\CIP Excel Workbook\CIP - 2014-03-17 for Council 03-25-2014Overall CIP41 of 59



Agenda Item 4   
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: March 25, 2014  

 

SUBJECT: PRESENT 2013 YEAR END FINANCIALS  

 

PREPARED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

                                          

ATTACHMENT(S): 

 

 1. 2013 Fourth Quarter and Annual Report 

 2.  Quarterly Performance Report Charts for All Funds 

 3. Major Revenue Comparison 

  

EXPLANATION: 

 

Attached are reports and charts that provide both summary and detailed information on revenues 

and expenditures for each of the city’s operational funds.   

 

It is the policy of the City of Covington and a requirement of state law (RCW 35A.34.240) to 

provide financial reports to the governing body on a quarterly basis.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

 

No impact. This is an update on 2013 operational activity through fourth quarter as compared to 

budget. 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution  _____Motion   __X___Other 

 

ASK QUESTIONS OF STAFF 

 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

42 of 59



ATTACHMENT 1

43 of 59



44 of 59



45 of 59



46 of 59



47 of 59



48 of 59



49 of 59



ATTACHMENT 2

50 of 59



51 of 59



52 of 59



53 of 59



54 of 59



ATTACHMENT 3

55 of 59



Agenda Item 5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  March 25, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSS COUNCIL’S COMMISSIONER INTERVIEW PROCEDURES 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
None 
 
PREPARED BY:   Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Council members Snoey, Scott, and Cimaomo requested this agenda item to discuss the council’s 
current procedures for commissioner interviews, specifically, the location of those interviews. 
No specific procedures for commissioner interviews are prescribed in the Council Rules of 
Procedure.  
 
All commissioner interviews are publically noticed as a special meeting held prior to the 
council’s regular meeting and are open to the public. To create a less formal environment, 
council has historically held commissioner interviews in the city’s conference room next to 
council chambers. The conference room has been considered the same location as the council’s 
regular meetings, therefore the special meeting notices have not specified the location and signs 
are not posted outside the conference room. Though the interviews are open to the public, 
concern was raised that holding the interviews in the closed conference room was not a best 
practice, particularly concerning the security controls on the door between council chambers and 
the conference room. 
 
Below are possible options for altering the council’s procedures for commissioner interviews to 
follow best practices. 
 

1. The door between the conference room and council chambers may be propped open so 
that the location of the interviews is openly visible and accessible from council chambers. 
 

2. Special meetings may be held at a location other than where the council’s regular 
meetings are held. Accordingly, rather than deeming the conference room as the same 
location as the council’s regular meetings, the conference room may be treated as an 
alternative location that is specifically noted on the special meeting notice and indicated 
by signs placed outside each door to the conference room (pursuant to state statute). The 
conference room doors may then remain closed, though staff will need to arrange for the 
security controls on the conference room door to council chambers to be disabled during 
the interviews to allow the public to freely enter. 
 

56 of 59



3. The interviews may be held in the council chambers. 
 

4. Council may choose to not make the interviews public and avoid a quorum and public 
noticing requirements by interviewing commission applicants in smaller groups of three 
or fewer council members. 

 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  Continue to follow current procedures for commissioner interviews. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution       Motion     X     Other 
 

Provide direction to staff. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Attorney; City Manager; City Clerk 

57 of 59



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  March 25, 2014 
 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 
 
 

5:40 p.m., Tuesday, April 8, 2014 Special Meeting for 
Planning Commission Interviews 

 
 

7:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 8, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 
 

(Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

58 of 59



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETINGS AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
 
Tuesday, April 8, 2014                                                                            City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                               16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Planning Commission applicants beginning at 5:40 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• King County Sheriff’s Office Report – Sheriff Urquhart 
• National Building Safety Month Proclamation – May (Meyers) 
• National Transportation Week Proclamation – May 11-17, 2014 (Vondran) 
• National Public Works Week Proclamation – May 18-24, 2014 (Vondran) 
• National Aquatics Month Proclamation – May 2014 (Bahl) 
• Arbor Day Proclamation – April 25, 2014 (Vondran) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  February 25, 2014 Regular Meeting; March 11, 2014 Special & Regular 

Meetings; and March 25, 2014 Special & Regular Meetings (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointments to Planning Commission (Council) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 

Draft 
as of 3/20/14 

 

59 of 59

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	Consent Item C-1 Green Sheet 03-25-2014 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Item C-1 Attachment 1 02.11.2014 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent Item C-1 Attachment 2 02.25.2014 Special Study Session Minutes
	Consent Item C-2 Green Sheet 03-25-2014 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Item C-2 Attachment
	Consent Item C-3 Green Sheet 03-25-14 CCP Maintenance Blue Sheet
	Consent Item C-3 Attachment 1 03-25-14 Amendment 1 - Canber Corps
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	By: Derek Matheson
	CANBER CORPS
	By:

	Consent Item C-4 Green Sheet 03-25-2014 - Blue Sheet, CCP - LWCF Dev Application
	Consent Agenda Item C-4

	Consent Item C-4 Attachment 1 03-25-2014 - Resolution, CCP - LWCF Dev Grant Application
	Consent Item C-5 Green Sheet 03-25-2014 - Blue Sheet, CCP - WWRP Dev Application
	Consent Agenda Item C-5

	Consent Item C-5 Attachment 1 03-25-2014 - Resolution, CCP - WWRP Dev Grant Application
	Consent Item C-6 Green Sheet 03-25-2014 - Blue Sheet, SoCo - WWRP Acq Application
	Consent Agenda Item C-6

	Consent Item C-6 Attachment 1 03-25-2014 - Resolution, SoCo - WWRP Acq Grant Application
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 03-25-2014 Appointments to Human Services Commission Blue Sheet
	Item 2 Blue Sheet 03-25-2014 - Blue Sheet, Covington Community Park Ph2 Design
	Item 2 Attachment 1 50% Design Site Plan
	Item 3 Blue Sheet 03-25-2014 Blue Sheet Parks CFP Discussion
	Item 3 Attachment 1 6-Year Parks Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Summary
	Item 3 Attachment 2 6-Year CIP Map
	Item 3 Attachment 3 6-Year Parks CIP Project Descriptions
	Item 3 Attachment 4 20-Year Parks Captial Facilities Plan (CFP) Project List
	Item 4 Blue Sheet 03-25-14 Year End Financials
	Item 4 Attachments 1-3
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	04-08-2014 Special & Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, April 8, 2014                                                                            City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	 King County Sheriff’s Office Report – Sheriff Urquhart
	 National Building Safety Month Proclamation – May (Meyers)
	 National Transportation Week Proclamation – May 11-17, 2014 (Vondran)
	 National Public Works Week Proclamation – May 18-24, 2014 (Vondran)
	 National Aquatics Month Proclamation – May 2014 (Bahl)
	 Arbor Day Proclamation – April 25, 2014 (Vondran)

	03-25-2014 Special & Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	Tuesday, March 25, 2014                                                                           City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Item 5 Blue Sheet 03-25-14 Blue Sheet Commission Interview Procedures_Revised.pdf
	Agenda Item 5




